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CHAIR KANE: ... (gavel). .. I'd like to call to order the Council's Budget and Finance
For the record, we have in
Committee meeting for January 3rd , 2006.
attendance ...Members Carroll, Anderson, Johnson, Molina, Pontanilla, Tavares.
Excused for the moment--and both will be attending very shortly--Members Mateo and
the Vice-Chair of the Committee, Mr. Hokama. We also have in attendance this
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afternoon, Ms. Lynn Araki-Regan, our Economic Development Coordinator out of the
Office of the Mayor; as well as Mr. Brian Moto, Corporation Counsel. Good afternoon,
Members. Happy New Year to all of you. Thank you for attending.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Happy New Year.
CHAIR KANE: Members, we have one item on our agenda this afternoon, BudgetlFinance Item
Number 55, the Wailuku Redevelopment Area real property tax exemption.. .item.

ITEM NO. 55:

WAILUKU REDEVELOPMENT AREA REAL PROPERTY TAX
EXEMPTION (C.c. No. 05-341)

CHAIR KANE: We have met previously on this particular item, Members. And the Chair will
note prior to recognizing ... our public testimony component of this meeting--and for the
record, we do have Mr. Mateo in attendance ...thank you, Mr. Mateo .
. . . That, Members, we have received the following since the last meeting, which was on
the 13th of December. First, we have received a correspondence dated 12115 from the
Director of Finance providing statistics and background data regarding properties in the
Wailuku Redevelopment Area. That should be in your binders. We also have a revised
proposed bill which includes, first, the changes requested by our Economic Development
Coordinator at our last meeting on this item, which basically extends all the deadlines by
one year--which was discussed prior to that deferral. And also, Members, there has been
included a provision that allows for a phase-in of the incremental increase in building
valuation over a two-year period. That is something that through discussion, as your
Chair, we went ahead and put something in there as a starting for ... starting point for
discussion. If the Members would like to make adjustments to that, we'll have that
available for discussion. Also, Members, finally I'll note that you have on your desks or
in your packet, anyway, a map of the Wailuku Redevelopment Area, existing and
proposed boundaries, dated January 2000. And the Chair would like to ask you to note
that the map includes the area of Historic District 3 which is noted, notated in yellow.
And, Members, it is the Chair's understanding that the parcels in the Historic District
Number 3 would not qualify for real property tax exemption under this proposed bill. So,
again, a note for you to consider. At this time, Members, unless there's any questions for
clarification on how we proceed, I'd like to open up for public testimony. And before we
do that, Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yeah, Chair, thank you. In, in reference to the map that
you just noted-CHAIR KANE: Yes, ma'am.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: --will Subarea 1 and 2 also be .. .included?
CHAIR KANE: Yes.
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BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

January 3, 2006

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Yes. The only area that would be excluded, from my understanding, is the
yellow area which is that, or the Historic District which is right above us ... here on the
other side of Main Street. Or, excuse me, on High Street.
... Okay? Any other questions? Hearing none, Members, we'll open it up for public
testimony at this time. Those of you signed up to testify, we'll provide you with three
minutes, an additional minute to conclude. The Chair's first experience is, probably as
well as yours, we have a, looks like a little lighting system that's up there to kind of note,
note you, notify you of your time. Please, when you come up to the rostrum, it'll be three
min, uh, excuse me, state your name for the record. . .and if you represent an
organization, we'd like to know that as well. Is that light system working up there? No?
MR. TAGUCHI: No.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, it's for looks for now. So-ALL: .. . {laughter} . ..
CHAIR KANE: --members of the audience .. .{laughter} . .. who's ever testifying, don't pay
attention .. .{laughter} . .. to that little thing, that device that's on .. .{laughter} . .. on the
rostrum there, on the podium. Again, state your name for the record, if you represent an
organization.
. . . And, please, when you finish your testimony, just hang on for a moment, there may
be questions for you regarding your testimony. With that, first person to testify,
Mr. Jonathan Starr. And he'll be followed by Ms. Helen Nielsen .

. . .BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONY. ..
MR. STARR: ... Aloha, Council Members. My name is Jonathan Starr. And Happy New Year
to all of you. I'm here representing my company, which is Starr Properties. And we own
about 60,000 square foot of, of property in the Redevelopment Area on...Main Street
between Market and Central Avenue. For some years, we've been looking to redevelop
the property and try to encourage other property owners in the, in the Wailuku area to
redevelop the properties that they have so that the town could really take on its, its true
character as, as the center in, and heart of. .. of our wonderful Maui. And I, and I think
it's heading that way. I wanna speak in favor of this ordinance. I think it's wonderful. I
think you've improved it slightly since the last time. And I think it's ideal now. So I
wanna thank you for the consideration that's gone into it. It will really be a very strong
step enabling property owners like myself to finally be able to redevelop our properties
and bring body heat and bring affordable housing, as well as commercial and retail
opportunities into Wailuku. This is a... been the most successful method used
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throughout the United States to help property owners along in their projects. It's a good
first step. And I just wanna thank you for it and I wanna thank the Administration, and
especially...the Office of Lynn Araki-Regan for putting this together. It's a really good
effort and I just really wanna thank you and hope that it gets passed forward.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Starr. Members, any questions for Mr. Starr?
· . . Hearing none, thank you for your testimony.
Doug McLeod.

Helen Nielsen next, followed by

MS. NIELSEN: ... Hello, everyone. My name is Helen Nielsen. Happy New Year.
· .. I'm partners with my husband, Jonathan Starr. I'm here also to testify in favor of this
ordinance. I appreciate all the work that's gone into it. And... property owners in
distressed areas can use all the help they can get. And this is a real. ..boost. So I just
wish to testify in favor of this ordinance and hope you'll vote favorably. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Nielsen. Members, any questions?
· .. Hearing none, thank you very much.
MS. NIELSEN: Uh-huh.
CHAIR KANE: Doug McLeod, followed by... Melissa Prince.
MR. McLEOD: ... Chairman Kane, Council Members, my name is Doug McLeod. And I
know some of you. We built the building down at Market and Vineyard, the newer green
two-story building down there. And I'm testifying today generally in favor of this
ordinance. And my understanding is that ...the only provision, I guess, I personally
objected to--on payroll records and prevailing wage--is no longer part of what the
Administration's proposing. So I think today I'm testifying in favor of, of the
Administration's current proposal. I actually don't stand to benefit directly from this.
The way this is written, this would only apply to new projects starting after the time of
this ordinance. So if anyone has any questions or wants, you know, I guess a little bit of
a neutral view of this, I'm happy to, to try and take those. But, again, I, this is a step in
the right direction. You know, it's not gonna single-handedly change things overnight.
But I, I am testifying in favor and I would say that, you know, a lot of the local
businessmen would feel the same way on that. So that, those are really my comments.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Members, any questions for Mr. "McLoud"? Excuse me for
mispronouncing your last name.
· .. I, I have one question. You noted one area, although it's not directly impacting you,
you noted one area that you had concerns about. Can you expound on that just a little bit
because-- 4-
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MR. McLEOD: Well, I, I think that the, the issue I had--and, again, I think this issue's gone.
But in the, the language right now, if you looked on Page 3 ... subparagraph F where it
talks about the documentation you'd actually need. You know, the concern I had is that
this is a level of paperwork that you'd expect with a major construction project--you
know, doing a highway or something. And that for some of the smaller projects in
Wailuku, especially where you're working with these existing lots, this was, to me, just
too much paperwork. And my understanding, again, is that the Administration is, is .. .if
not in agreement with that, I mean, they're certainly agreeable to, to pulling the language.
CHAIR KANE: ... Okay.
MR. McLEOD: And, and I'm not really arguing the politics of prevailing wages so much as just
the paperwork here, that it's just too much for, for a small project.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Thank you. Any further questions?
... Hearing none, thank you, Mr. McLeod. Next to testify is Melissa Prince.
MS. PRINCE: ... Good afternoon and Happy New Year. My name is Melissa Prince. And I
had not originally planned to come and testify here today. I had come up to the County
Council just to pass some time because I had planned to go and walk the streets with my
sign here that says "Waiehu Beach Park for Sale". And.. .I noticed the traffic was light.
So I thought, ah, I'll just come to the County Council and, you know, hang out. And
wow . . .I must say this year is starting off to an exciting start already. Who needs
Desperate Housewives? We've already got. .. reality TV right here. I took a time to go
at lunch to go and read some of the details of these bills. What we see here on these
flyers are just. .. summaries. And boy did I get an eyeful ... (sigh) . .. I'm mad. But I'm
gonna try and keep it to this topic here today--which is the property tax thing in Wailuku.
I have nothing against it. I think it's great. Wailuku needs help. I wanna see it get
better. But you know what really makes me mad? Why can't we have this for everybody
on the island? You know, I went to Haiku Community Association meeting not too long
ago, and one of the small business owners there said, you know, my, my rent is gonna go
up twice. And she, she mentioned a figure. I can't remember exactly. But I think she
said 600,000 dollars. I don't know if that was a year or over three years. But she said it's
gonna go up twice. And you know what that means--is that. .. that's gonna be passed on
to us con... customers. And another thing that occurred to me. If you have ... property
tax advantage for Wailuku and not for the others, what does that mean? Only exclusive
people will be able to afford rent. So what does that mean? More gentrification? What
about the small business owners? What about those employees? Every tax bill that those
owners have to pay is money out of the pockets of the employees because they won't
have any money extra, leftover to pay for extra wages and other things that they need. So
I just wanna ask you--please consider. .. doing this fairly. Property, we need real
property tax reform for both residents and business people. For everyone. Not just some
exclusive group. And, and another thing--in Wailuku, I sure hope that those people that
-5-
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are trying to get that permit for those folks that are trying to, that are coming out of prison
and need... to go through a program, the old Cabebe Store, I think it was--oh, my god,
I'm breaking this thing. You know ...have they gotten their permits yet? What about
them? We need to remember everybody in this community--notjust the people who have
money and influence and power. And that's what I have to say. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Prince. Members, any questions for Ms. Prince?
· .. Hearing none, thank you very much for your testimony.
· .. Is there anybody else here in the Chamber that has not testified that would like to do
so at this time? Now is your opportunity...to step forward.
· .. Okay, seeing nobody approach, Members, without objections, we'll close testimony
for this afternoon's meeting.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, thank you very much.
NOTE:

Public testimony was closed at 1 :44 p.m.

. . .END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY. ..
CHAIR KANE: Secretary, have we received any written testimony?
MS. SAKAMOTO: No, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Thank you.
· .. Members, at this time, I'd like to open the floor to Ms. Araki-Regan to provide some
opening remarks to what we have on the floor. And we also have, Members, for. .. as
resource, the Director of Finance, Mr. Young; and Mr. Lance Okumura from Property
Tax Division available for us as well. Okay? Ms. Araki-Regan, good afternoon.
MS. ARAKI-REGAN: Thank you, Chair Kane and Members of this Committee. As I
mentioned a few weeks ago .. .in the year 2000, the Council did approve a Wailuku
Redevelopment Area Plan which was developed pursuant to Chapter 53 of the Hawaii
Revised Statutes, which is the Urban Renewal Law. In this Wailuku Redevelopment
Plan.. .it specifically states that one of the proposals for action is the adoption of a
property tax abatement ordinance. It is the ... the opinion of the Administration that such
an ordinance will in fact create that necessary incentive for existing and new property
owners in the Wailuku Redevelopment Area to make improvements to their
properties--which in our Office's opinion will result in new amenities, more job
opportunities, restoration of pride in Maui's civic center, increased tax base for. .. to
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provide greater public safety and services, and rehabilitation and restoration of buildings
and public spaces. As Mr. McLeod did mention...the ...revised... ordinance or
proposed bill before you... currently, at this time includes paragraph B.3 which is on
Page 2, the third paragraph. It is the Administration's opinion--after talking with the
Finance Director--that we would, we wish to delete that paragraph, as well as paragraph
F. Mainly because we understand the properties ... property owners' concerns about the
excessive paperwork that's involved. And especially in light of us ...having this
ordinance upon, you know if and when the Committee does approve it. .. the whole
incentive of this ordinance is really to encourage improvements. And ...rather than, you
know, requiring the .. .language of paragraph 3 and paragraph F ...we'd like to move
forward and encourage .. .improvements to properties in the Wailuku Redevelopment
Area without such requirements. Urn .. .I'm not sure if any of you would have any
questions ...with the proposed deletion or proposed amendments that's before you, but
I'm here, as well as the Finance Department is here to answer any questions you may
have.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Araki-Regan. And before I open the floor, I'll just note,
Ms. Araki-Regan, that you are speaking against your own... submittal. I mean, you came
forward and, and felt very strongly. So maybe you can help the body understand the
reversal of your position in this area. And is it based on a property owner's comments or,
I mean, did you do ... due diligence within the community and get, get a favorable
response from a number of different people within the community?
MS. ARAKI-REGAN: Actually, it was ... as a result of Mr. McLeod's call to me last week.
And unfortunately, we weren't able to talk before the amendment was done and
transmitted from ...the Department of Corporation Counsel to you, Chair. But as a result
of my talking to Mr. McLeod, I spoke to other organizations in the Wailuku
Redevelopment Area, as well as consulted with Traci Fujita Villarosa of the Department
of Corporation Counsel and the Finance Director about this proposed deletion of
paragraph B.3 and paragraph F. And all parties who I spoke to had no objection to the
proposed deletion. I think it just further encourages or would further encourage property
owners and businesses to make the necessary improvements to further revitalize and
redevelopment [sic] the Wailuku ...the Wailuku Redevelopment Area. And... for this
reason, we're in strong support ofthe proposed deletion.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Thank you very much. Members, just, again, for this area and since we
have a few areas that can be covered among other things--as I've highlighted--why don't
we go ahead and start in this area. The recommendation from the Administration is
specifically to delete Section B.3 ... which is located on Page 2, which starts "the laborers
and mechanics who perform", et cetera. That portion would be deleted as well as on
Page 3, it would be paragraph F in its entirety. And that's the proposal from
Administration to have this component complete--or just deleted from the proposal. I'll
open the discussion. We'll start there and then we have, again, there's other places where
we can discuss. Ms. Tavares?
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COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah, my question is that if we, these two sections are
deleted--I know you talked with Deputy Corporation Counsel--does this ...not. .. meet
the requirements of Chapter 104, if these references to wages and things like that are
deleted?
... Maybe that's more a question for Mr. Moto than it is for the Director.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Mr. Moto, if you're ...
MR. MOTO: Good afternoon, Mr. Chairman and Members. Db...the .. .let me step back and
say that there's a general principle of, for ... tax law--and that is that exemptions .. .like
these, that are being contemplated here, are considered to be matter of legislative
largesse.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Db-huh.
MR. MOTO: That's sometimes the phrase that's used. In other words, tax abatement and tax
exemption programs are really... policy decisions made by the Legislative body to reduce
or eliminate taxes. You, you're not required to have exemptions.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Db-huh.
MR. MOTO: But you may have them. Strictly speaking, Chapter 104, which is sometimes
referred to as the Davis-Bacon Act as incorporated in... by State statute ... technically
does not apply to real property taxation. When this bill was originally drafted .. .I mean, I
did not. ..participate in that original draft. But my assumption is that ...
. . . that there was probably a thought that. .. while this bill was intended to provide tax
breaks for people who would reinvest and improve properties in the Wailuku
Redevelopment Area, that it should be confined to those who could prove that they were
paying prevailing wages.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Db-huh.
MR. MOTO: Now, Chapter 104 does not require .. .it wouldn't. . .it doesn't require that when
drafting or, or...tax reduction legislation that you limit it solely to those projects where
laborers where paid the prevailing wage rates. It's just not relevant. It's really a policy
call on your part. You may retain this provision in the bill, and if so, then the tax benefit
will be limited to those property owners who can demonstrate and provide all the
documents necessary to show that the construction laborers and other were paid at the
prevailing wage rates. However if you, if you... on the other hand, you may eliminate it.
In which case the bill would just be silent and ...the benefits will go to anyone who can
meet the other requirements of the bill.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: ... Yes, Mr. Chairman.
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CHAIR KANE: Ms. Tavares?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Thank, thank you for that explanation, Mr. Moto, I feel a
whole lot more comfortable about it now. 'Cause one of my concerns had been that
when you have a small owner... or a small ... {laughter} . .. not a "small owner", an
owner of a small business .. .(laughter). .. that they may do a lot of the work themselves
or relatives or it's a family thing where everybody pitches in to help. And I guess, not "I
guess", but I, I am going to assume that the controls as far as health and safety and
meeting building codes will rest with the inspectors who then have to go in before a
certificate of occupancy or final inspection or whatever they call it for a business
is .. .issued that, you know, all of the items are checked. And I know that with the
building permit that they will have to have, there are points within that building permit
that require inspections of various stages where if you have electrical work or plumbing
work, they can't close the walls or do stuff until they've had an inspection. So I feel
comfortable that the public ...the public is served well even without these conditions in
it. So, Mr. Chairman, I, I can understand why...there's a reversal of this and...with
Mr. Moto's explanation, you know, I just wanna make sure that we were not going to
ignore part of a requirement that was in Chapter 103, 'er 104. So I thank you for
that. .. explanation, Mr. Moto. And thank you for the time, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Mr. Moto, you can proceed with additional comments.
MR. MOTO: Yes, thank you, Mr. Chairman. I forgot to mention one point about Chapter 104,
Hawaii Revised Statutes, which is that it. . .it's really intended to apply to government
public works projects.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Right. Yes. Okay.
MR. MOTO: And...this bill is, obviously, not targeted towards government public works
projects but to private property owners who are paying real property taxes on an annual
basis.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Moto. I think that's an important point that you've .. .injected
there at the .. .in the 11th .. . {laughter} . .. hour of that. Any additional questions or
comments in this area? Ms. Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I have no objection to, you know, this section because I think
that ifI understand this correctly this would also allow, let's say, a nonprofit entity would
corne in and they would be utilizing labor that was in-training or they would be utilizing,
perhaps, volunteers or even our Workline program. I think that, ifI'm correct, that would
provide ... an opportunity or that flexibility that would ordinarily not exist if this section
were to remain. Is that correct, Mr. Moto?
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MR. MOTO: Mr. Chairman ... a couple of things. First. . .if a property is leased or owned by a
nonprofit entity and used for nonprofit purposes, the property is probably subject to a tax
exemption already-COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Uh-huh.
MR. MOTO: --separate and apart from this particular provision that you're looking at. Under
existing County Code provisions, they would not be paying real property taxes.
Urn ... the second point I wauna make is that there are certain circumstances where a
non... a, if a nonprofit is receiving Federal funds ...Federal grant funds, for example, or
even State grant funds, then they may be subject to requirements under Federal or State
law to abide by the Davis-Bacon Act provisions regarding wage rates.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:
different--

Okay, so they're subjected to that under a completely

MR. MOTO: That is-COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: --ruling.
MR. MOTO: --correct.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: And also because of their tax exempt status, you know, this
would be unlikely--unless they didn't own the building, they were just making
improvements ... you know, on something that they were actually, well, 'cause I know we
have some lease properties in the area where the County actually owns the building. But,
you know, if it would keep the cost down, I would say this would be something that
would give us that opportunity. Now, if for example, let's say that situation did occur.
Obviously, ifit's a County-owned building, we're not gonua worry about this .
. . . Okay? I, I just wanted to make sure. And I had another question
I'll save that, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Johnson. Any more questions

another area, but

this area? Ms. Anderson?

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Chair. Mr. Moto, just for my clarification,
when you say "prevailing wages", these are the wages that are established by the Director
of Labor and Industrial. .. Relations according to Chapter 104?
MR. MOTO: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And, and would those wages in any way be reflective of
union rates or. . .I mean, what is a prevailing...rate?
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MR. MOTO: I don't recall the, the technical calculation, but yes, in general they are pretty much
the union's ... or their, they are either identical to or very sim, close to the union scale-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: To what the unions have.
MR. MOTO: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And it has nothing to do with minimum wage.
MR. MOTO: ... No. They're, they're far above-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Right.
MR. MOTO: --minimum wage.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Right. Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Any further questions in this area?
... Hearing none, Members, at this point the Chair would entertain a motion, given the
discussion, to delete the two areas that are being proposed by Ms. Araki-Regan in the
proposed bill. And that is specifically to delete Section 3.48.559.B(3), as well as
Section F.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So moved.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Second.
CHAIR KANE: It's been moved and seconded by Members Michelle ... uh, Anderson and
Molina. Discussion, Ms. Anderson?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: You know, just given the discussion that we've had, I
think .. .I think that this is ... an okay thing to do .
. . . You may end up paying union wages just to get the job done, so ...you know, this is
a... very tight construction market right now and I think we need to keep it open and
flexible so that these property owners can get the job done and not tie them and further
constrain them with.. .I think, unnecessary requirements. I, I appreciate the reason it was
here to begin with because we do want to see everyone get a fair wage, but in today's
market, I don't think that's gonna be a problem. So I, I'm fully in support of making this
as streamlined as possible so people can get on with it.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Mr. Molina, you had any additional discussion in this area before I
recognize Ms. Johnson?
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COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No ... Mr. Chairman, just in total support of the ...motion to
amend. I think it helps to add more specificity to the ... ordinance. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Ms. Johnson, thank you for your patience.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: No, mine was just a point of information because I was
unaware if. .. when you go and you delete something from the ordinance, I just was
unaware if we had adopted the ordinance at the previous meeting.
CHAIR KANE: No.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. Well, then-CHAIR KANE: What we're doing is just making a motion to delete this component so when we
do move forward for the adoption, it'll be revised.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Prior to consideration.
CHAIR KANE: That is correct.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. Because usually we do it the other way so I
.. . {laughter} . .. I just had a procedural question. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Any further discussion?
... Hearing none--oh, I'm sorry, Ms. Anderson?
COUNCILMEMBERANDERSON: No, no, no, I'm sorry, go ahead.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Hearing none, all in favor say "aye".
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR KANE: Opposed? Okay, let the record show it's unanimous with Mr. Hokama excused.
VOTE:

AYES:

Councilmembers Anderson, Carroll, Johnson, Mateo, Molina,
Pontanilla, Tavares, and Chair Kane.

NOES:

None.

ABSTAIN:

None.

ABSENT:

None.

EXC.:

Vice-Chair Hokama.
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MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION:

APPROVE revision to proposed bill (delete Section 3.48.559.B.3
and Section 3.48.559.F).

CHAIR KANE: Members, we took care of that part. The other part I'd like to highlight is the
revision that I pointed out in your Chair's opening remarks regarding the ... the provision
that allows for a phase-in of the incremental increase in building valuation over a
two-year period. I think in that discussion Member Tavares, as well as myself, as well as
a member or two ... um ...noted that the Wailuku Redevelopment Area doesn't consist
purely of business, but it has residential as well as other components within in. And that
having a seven-year window and then right after that you have to pay all the 100 percent
of the ... of the increased valuation may pose ... a challenge or a hardship for a property
owner. So the idea of this proposal was to phase it in so it wouldn't be as
difficult--which, ideally, would benefit the business owner as well. They would benefit
'cause they wouldn't have to hit the whole lump sum of the valuation increase after the,
the time period of exemption is up. So we have this as a, a starting point. Ms. Tavares?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah, Mr. Chairman, I think I must have gotten a little bit
spacey during the ... Christmas break ...
CHAIR KANE: .. .(laughter). ..
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: ... but could you .. . (laughter) . .. point out to me exactly
where that is referred to-CHAIR KANE: Sure-COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

your bill ...

CHAIR KANE: It's-COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

the bill?

CHAIR KANE: --on Page 2, and it follows the part that we just deleted... that number 3 where
it says "the labor"-COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Oh, "C".
CHAIR KANE: --right under that-COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay.
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CHAIR KANE: --in Part C. And the Chair will read it for Members, if you don't mind,
Ms. Tavares-COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yes, please.
CHAIR KANE: --so everybody-COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Thank you
CHAIR KANE: --know...know where we're at. For real property within the Wailuku
Redevelopment Area, 50 percent of the incremental increase in building valuation
primarily attributable to qualifying construction work shall be exempt from real property
taxes for the 8th year following the completion of the qualifying construction work. If
you notice that the other 50 percent, because it's silent, it basically, it'll kick in the whole
thing on the 9th year.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: So on the 9th year they would be paying the 100 percent.
CHAIR KANE: That is correct.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay.
CHAIR KANE: So that 8th year is that transition period of having a 50 percent. . .increment.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: I guess I was looking for something that said "the first year
and the second year", and I only .. .(laughter) . .. I didn't find that.
CHAIR KANE: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Thank you for pointing that out.
CHAIR KANE: Sure. No problem. We're open for any line of questioning this area. Again,
this is based on the discussion that we had previous and trying to incorporate ...where we
can prevent potential harm to any property owner in this Redevelopment Area. Any
additional questions? Ms. Tavares?
COUNCILMEMBER TAV ARES: Yeah, Mr. Chairman, thank you for also putting this, this part
in.. .in.. .I guess reaction to some of the discussion we had at the last meeting. But I
wannajust kind of review that. On this real property tax, it's the tax over and above the
existing valuations of the properties and their buildings so that it's .. .it's not zero taxes
for seven years or whatever it is and then, bang, you get whatever. So it's whatever the
taxes are ... before they start their improvements, and then it's the, the taxes that would be
accrued based on the value of the improvements put onto these properties.
CHAIR KANE: That is the Chair's understanding.
- 14 -

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

January 3, 2006

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: And that's the, the difference. Okay.
CHAIR KANE: In other words, we're not gonna, they're not gonna have zero property tax.
They're gonna pay-COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Uh-huh.
CHAIR KANE: --the same, they're just getting exempted from the improvement-COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Right.
CHAIR KANE: --component within that window of time that we're providing-COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah.
CHAIR KANE: --in the bill.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah, I just wanted to review that because I think
it's ... sometimes very easy to, to jump to the conclusion that now we're saying they're
gonna pay zero until, you know, 8th, the 8th year they pay 50 percent or whatever. But it
is just on the improvements. If everybody.. .if anybody does nothing, they're still paying
taxes.
CHAIR KANE: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: So it's not a free ride for, you know, seven years. It's just a
deferral of, of that improvement.
CHAIR KANE: That is correct.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Assessment.
CHAIR KANE: Unless Corporation Counselor Ms. Araki-Regan... has a different comment to
the contrary of our understanding. Seeing none ...you're, you're correct, Ms. Tavares, on
that.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Ms. Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Even though I wasn't at the last meeting, I had an
opportunity to watch. And one of the questions that came up in this area is
that. .. and .. .just tell me if I'm wrong--you're basically freezing ... the tax? Or are you
not freezing their real property tax? Like, let's say they qualify for this. If you have a tax
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now, will that lock in if you're making improvements, or will you get a regular, like, let's
say you've got, maybe, all properties had like a one percent increase regardless of any
improvements ... or maybe a two percent increase regardless of any improvements.
Would you still be getting like even a... an adjustment on your base tax, or would you be
frozen? And the way I'm taking it is you'd be frozen.
CHAIR KANE: Ms. Araki-Regan, before you respond, we also have, again, Mr. Kalbert Young,
our Finance Director who may be one of the people who can respond to your question
since they're the ones who are doing the actual assessment and will have to be reading
this and applying it, if you will. Mr. Moto, you have any comments, though, Mr. Moto,
before we hear comment from Mister ...
MR. MOTO: .,. Yes-CHAIR KANE: ... Mr. Young?
MR. MOTO: --Mr. Chairman, before you ...this may also be expanded upon by the Finance
Director and the Real Property Tax Administrator. But technically, this bill is not
freezing the real property taxes or real property tax assessment of properties within the
Wailuku Redevelopment Area. What it's really doing is giving a tax break on any
improvements that may be made by a property owner who lives or, well, who has a
business or have, owns property within that District. Um.. .it is ...hypothetically
possible, theoretically possible that someone within the District might see their taxes
change ... even without, even if this bill were to pass. Be, for example, if the Council
were to change the tax rates-COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Uh-huh. Yeah.
MR. MOTO: --that apply to their classification of property.
. . . Perhaps the Finance Director could think of other situations that, where-COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: And, and what
looking at is because we're looking at
similar sales, and I guess I'm trying to fix this in my mind because I, I couldn't, out of
watching the last meeting, I didn't quite have that. You know, I, I wasn't sure if. .. all of
the properties .. .let's say sales are taking place and because we base our real property on
similar sales--irrespective of any improvements which would cause the property to be
greater in value--what, if I understand, then, what you're saying then is .. .it would still
not prevent that type of increase. It would allow it to go up just as all other properties in
that classification, but only the valuation that specifically related to the cost of the
improvements would be what was exempted.
MR. MOTO: ... Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay.
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UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Is there a need for Mister-COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: No.
CHAIR KANE: --Young to come down? Okay. Ms. Anderson, you have questions? And,
again, Mr. Young is here and available.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yeah, I think I'm probably gonna need his help on this.
But we'll-CHAIR KANE: Why don't you come down-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: --we'll give it a shot.
CHAIR KANE: --Mr. Young, Mr. Okumura?
NOTE:

Pause while Mr. Young and Mr. Okumura approached the floor.

CHAIR KANE: '" And you have the floor, Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you. Urn ... I'm having a little hard time. This is
just. . .in procedures here.
· .. Because the ... and, and it's a timing thing, I guess, because it says that...that the
exemption ...
· . . is based on the qualifying construction work. And... arld from what I can
that. .. that ...
· .. that, that figure is based on the, on ... the ... valuation of the construction cost when
they go to get their building permit. So .. .in other words, say.. .just. .. for. .. the sake of
discussion, say someone was to do a million-dollar improvement on their building. So
when they go to get their building permit, they're gonna put down a million dollars for
the valuation of their construction costs. And then ...would that figure from the building
permit be trarlsferred to Real Property for them to increase the valuation on the building
by that much? Or what is the procedure? How does that happen? I mean, do they, do
they wait until the construction is done and then they come back arid say, well, it cost
more tharl a million, it cost me a million-five? And... arld I'm not saying that this would
happen in this case because, of course, they're gonna wanna get all due credit for
whatever they put into it. But marlY times building permits are undervalued because the
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fee for the building pennit is based on the valuation of the construction. And I know
personally, I have looked at many building pennits, and I can tell you they're highly
undervalued. So how does that figure get transferred to Real Property? .. .(cleared
throat) . .. excuse me. And when does that happen? Does it happen at. .. at a CO or does
that happen ...
. . . when does that happen?
CHAIR KANE: Mr. Young, go ahead and identify yourself for the record, please.
MR. YOUNG: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Good afternoon, Members. Kalbert Young, Director of
Finance. Resource person joining me is Lance Okumura, the Real Property Tax
Administrator. Ms. Anderson, if we could tag team that. .. response-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Sure.
MR. YOUNG: --to you? I'll respond that the first part, in tenns of how the building pennits
will be, the value as stated on the building pennits will be applied to the value, it's
not. .. done that way where just whatever value is stated on the building pennit by
de facto becomes the increased assessed value improvement. There are several
conditions that would have to be taken into consideration, that Real Property Tax
reviews. Only one of which is the stated value of the improvements on the building
pennit. There is some relevance to the Davis-Bacon issue because ... as you've pointed
out with your example of what is stated on the building pennits, for example, if someone
was to submit a building pennit and was using prevailing union wages, their estimated
value could conceivably be more than say if someone else submitted their building
pennits and did not have to pay union wages. So we, we don't just take the value that's
stated on the pennit as the increased value. But it is one consideration in tenns of
determining what is the ultimate increased value that is derived from that improvement.
As far as when the, that value is determined, Mr. Okumura may be the more appropriate
person to tell you specifically whether it happens before the improvement is, is fully
completed or if it's at the time of the CO or the inspection. So with the Chair's
indulgence, ifMr. Okumura could respond as well?
CHAIR KANE: Mr. Okumura, if you can identify yourself, please, for the record.
MR. OKUMURA: Lance Okumura, Real Property Tax Administrator.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you.
MR. OKUMURA: As far as when it will take effect as ... for taxation purposes, as of
December 31 S\ we make a detennination as to what degree of completion
that. .. construction is at.
NOTE:

Silence.
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: ... As of December 31 sl of every year-MR. OKUMURA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: --if something's in the process of construction ...
MR. OKUMURA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: ... you make a determination?
MR. OKUMURA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And how do you do that?
MR. OKUMURA: We have what we call a "COC value", it's components of construction that's
broken down by percentages. And we make a determination upon inspection as to how
far along that construction is. And we'll assess it according to percentage of completion.
NOTE:

Silence.

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: ... (cleared throat) . .. Well, in here it says that ...
. . . that they're going to be able to apply for this exemption in September of the tax year.
So if a determination isn't made until December... of what has actually been invested in
construction and, and actually... the way this reads, they're not eligible for any ... (end of
tape, start 1B). .. until the project is completed, until construction has been completed.
So that's really where I'm, what I'm concerned about--is that how do you
determine ...what was invested at the completion of the construction, and when does
that. . .I guess at any given time if they complete construction, say, in February, you don't
change their property assessment until December of that year for the following year's
tax?
MR. YOUNG: ... Ms. Anderson, yes, that's ... that's correct. Because even if the construction
work was to be completed at any point during the calendar year, the way the current Code
is established, the Council will get a certified roll of real property taxes that is effective as
of December 31 sl of that preceding year. So we, the way that we would work this, the
provisions of this ordinance is that regardless of when the construction is
completed... they will get a, the, the suspension of the increase for the improvements for
the following tax year, going forward.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay. And so what happens if--just one more question,
Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Please. Proceed.
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:
So what happens if say--just going back to my
example--when someone applied for their building permit, they said they were gonna do
a million dollars in improvements and a year-and-a-half later they complete their
improvements and ... maybe they only spent 800,000 or conversely they spent a
million-five. How is that change ...
. . . transmitted to you and in what form? Do you just take their word for it or. . .I'd like
to have some assurance that we're not gonna have any abuse of this. But of course, you
know, whatever their increase is in valuation, that's what they're getting-MR. YOUNG: In certain circumstances.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: --abated so it's kind of hard to abuse it, but ...
MR. YOUNG: ... The value on the building permit is not the only...tool that Real Property
Tax uses to estimate the value of the improvement. In fact, it's only one of multiple
components. The biggest one of which is an actual physical inspection that, an actual
viewing of the property for the improvements for the Appraiser to derive a value of the
improvement. So although he takes in--he or she takes into account how much was stated
on the building permit, it, it does not mean that that will be, that the value on the permit
will be more or less ofthe improvement. So ... there will be an Appraiser that will go and
site inspect the property or by some way calculate the value of the improvement. And on
December 31 S\ the Real Property Tax Division will, therefore, be able to ascertain how
much of the value of the improvement will be in suspense for the period of time. So .. .1
think you can feel very confident and the public can feel very confident that there is a
systematic process in terms of determining what the value of these improvements are
gonna be and what the share of the real property tax will be abated.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So the inspectors that go and look, they, they know about
building cost and all that so they're able, by a visual inspection, to determine ...what,
maybe, was invested in the building?
MR. YOUNG: Maybe not by what is, was invested in the building, but what is the, what is the
improvement worth, what is the real property tax assessment value. Just because you
spend a million dollars does not mean that your improvement is valued at a million
dollars. It could be more, could be less. So .. .it's-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Oh, so it's not gonna be a straight translation. Ifsomebody
spent a million dollars, and the inspectors say, well, you really only did 800,000 dollars
in improvements, they're only gonna get that. .. that valuation and that credit.
MR. YOUNG: Correct. Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay. All right. Thank you.
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CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Anderson. Any more questions in this area? Mr. Pontanilla?
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you, Chair. The people that doing the inspection
as well as the appraising of the property, are those County employees that will be doing
this?
MR. YOUNG: Mr. Pontanilla, currently, Real Property Tax, yes. They're, they're all County
employees and ... the same process that is used for property valuations for this particular
ordinance is the same appraisers and the same process for valuations that is used
Countywide for all property valuations of real property tax.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: So the .. .inspectors will come from that particular
Department rather than the Public Works.
MR. YOUNG: Correct. Yes, correct, the Public Works employees do not value improvements
for the purposes of real property taxes. Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Any further questions in this area?
... Ms. Anderson?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yeah, just out of curiosity, and, and I think maybe people
that are looking to make this kind of investment would warma know, too--how often does
the tax appraisers find their valuation to be much less than what somebody has invested
in an improvement?
... And how much less might it be... as, you know ... a general ...
MR. OKUMURA: Uh, Mr. Chair?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: ... rule?
CHAIR KANE: Mr. Okumura?
MR. OKUMURA: Basically, when there's an improvement on a property, for assessment
purposes, real property tax purposes, it's conservative, the additional value.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Sorry?
MR. OKUMURA: It's conservative. Any improvement made to an existing structure, we will
depreciate it according to the main structure's age.
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NOTE:

Silence.

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: ... Urn ...
. . . Okay. But I, I don't think that answers my question. I mean, how often is it. . .is it
evaluated less than...what they actually invested? That's what I'm trying to get a feel
for.
MR. YOUNG: ... Yeah, Ms. Anderson, maybe I could answer it this way. It would be difficult
'cause every, every circumstance is unique. But I believe what Mr. Okumura is getting to
is that in practice, in his experience, and from what I've seen is that because of valuations
for real property tax purposes are on the conservative side, I would gather to say that the
majority and the far more frequent occurrence is that the valuation of your property is
below what you actually spent on it.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Appreciably below? Or ...
NOTE:

Silence.

MR. YOUNG: ... It, it. .. yeah, it would be, it would be difficult to say because it would, you
know, again, you get into this issue of, like, the price of your contractor versus... what,
you know, what neighborhood and what you try and make your dwelling look like.
But. . .1, I don't know about what would, would consider to be "appreciable".
Maybe ...ten, ten percent--if, if you took ten percent, I would feel very comfortable that
would be very consistent.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay. I wouldn't call 10 percent "appreciable". I'd call
40 percent appreciable.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Yeah.
MR. YOUNG: Oh, no, I would, no.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: But it's not more than ...
MR. YOUNG: No, again, it would depend on like, you know, if you like a, what, what the price
of your contractor and the type of work you're doing and the building-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Right.
MR. YOUNG: --but on average for-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: How many mistakes you make ... {laughter} . ..
MR. YOUNG: --a majority of the buildings, you know ... {laughter} . ..

- 22-

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council ofthe County of Maui

January 3, 2006

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: .. .{laughter} . ..
MR. YOUNG: Or the change orders, you know, et cetera. But-CHAIR KANE: Punch list.
MR. YOUNG: --for the most part on average property, you know, you're not talking about
building like the Guggenheim Museum or something .. .in Wailuku, I would .. .I would
not say 40 percent.
COUNCILMEMBERANDERSON: Yeah. Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, thank you. Any more questions in this area?
NOTE:

Silence.

CHAIR KANE: ... Db, okay, not hearing any more questions, are there any other issues in the
proposed bill that's before you that any Members would like to bring up for continued
discussion? Otherwise, the Chair is prepared to make a recommendation. Ms. Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I just had, it's not really an issue, but it's a question... about
monies that are available within the Wailuku Redevelopment Area in general. Is it
correct that we no longer are eligible for U. S. Department of Agriculture Rural
Development funds for this area because of population? Or have we not yet reached that
threshold?
MS. ARAKI-REGAN: ... I'm not exactly sure of the answer. I'm gonna have to check with
Rural Development Project and get back to you.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah, and, and the reason I ask that, Mr. Chair, is because
sometimes even on the financing--which may enable the person to get the resources to be
able to improve their property the first place--my concern is always ... you know, are
those funds gonna be available. And I know there were a couple of areas that we were
right on that cusp ... because of population in the last census, that we were not gonna be
able to take advantage of that money. And I think this was one of the areas were we were
not gonna be having an opportunity to use those funds any longer.
MS. ARAKI-REGAN: Well, we're fortunate--oh, Chair?
CHAIR KANE: Please.
MS. ARAKI-REGAN: We're fortunate that there are agencies-COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Right.
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MS. ARAKI-REGAN: --within the Federal government who offer grant funds. For example,
Lokahi Pacific, you know, was fortunate enough... enough to receive the
U. S. Department of Commerce Economic Development Administrative grant. And there
are other sources of funds if we look for them and, and apply for them. There are ...there
are grant funds available ...to nonprofits, particularly.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Uh-huh.
MS. ARAKI-REGAN: But, yeah, I'll, I'll have to get back to you with regards to that Rural
Development question of yours.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. And one final thing, and that is the Historic District
not being included in this area. Is that because of some legislative reason or is it just
simply being excluded at this time?
NOTE:

Silence.

MS. ARAKI-REGAN: '" It's not considered a Wailuku Redevelopment Area. It's not
included in the Wailuku Redevelopment Area, and so that historic area was not included.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. All right. Thank you very much.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Johnson. Mr. Pontanilla?
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you, Chair. Just a question. In, in regards to the
surrounding properties, what kind impact going have on those properties as far as their
taxes?
CHAIR KANE: ... Mr. Young?
MR. YOUNG: ... Well, Mr. Pontanilla, I guess it's difficult to predict what would be the
ultimate impact, to what degree. Conceivably, the properties in the surrounding areas,
they are .. .if they're values are in any way considered... from the resales of properties
that are in the MRA, there could be some impact. They could see some value increase or
decrease. Overall, I'm not sure if. . .let's say... to put this bluntly, I'm not sure that if
you live adjacent to a slight and ...blighted area... you know, to a blighted area and that
area is no longer slum and blight, if that ultimately results in, like, a significant increase
to the property values. Uh ...
. . . yeah, we wouldn't know how, to what degree this particular ordinance or the overall
improvement of Wailuku, to what degree that would have on the surrounding
neighborhood.
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COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: So there's gonna be some impact, though ... some kind
impact.
MR. YOUNG: I, I would suspect that any, that if. . .let me, let me just say if there is
some .. .resale improvements as a result of, let's say, MRA improvements ... then there
would be some impact in terms of the value. If those resales were increased in values, if
resales in the area resulted in more sales or higher-priced sales, then there would be some
affect. .. on the area. But to what degree those affects would be ...we would, we
wouldn't be able to comment at that at this time.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Thank you. Any further questions or comments before the Chair makes
his recommendation?
NOTE:

Silence.

CHAIR KANE: '" Okay, hearing none, Members ...just so you note, and just to reiterate to
Member Johnson, the reason why we did that as far as, because it was a removal or a
deletion of the proposal. So that's why the Chair moved forward to just get that out of
the way so when we have a recommendation, it's already cleared off the docket. Your
Chair will recommend that we pass the revised proposed ordinance as dated and received
by Ms. Traci ... Fujita Villarosa, dated December 28 t\ 2005. The Chair will note that
what has been added from the original proposal to this is that Section C on Page 2, which
is the ...the 50 percent; as well as four dates, I believe, were changed. And, Members, if
you can just take a brief. .. moment to take a look on Page 2, under Item Number 2 on the
top of the page. That date was changed from "2008" to "2009", so the one year change.
In the middle of the page, towards the bottom on Section D, the very last, where it reads
June 30th •. .it now reads "2017", it was "2016". And then finally on Page 3 at the very
last paragraph, G ...that's underscored, the two dates have been changed by one
year--"2010" from "2009", and then the June 29th , 2009 figure used to be 2008. So that
has been changed for a year. With that, Members, the Chair's recommendation is to pass
the revised proposed ordinance as it's presented in the December 28th , 2005 docket from
the Corporation Counsel, and filing of County Communication 05, dash, I believe it's
341.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: So moved.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA and COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Second.
CHAIR KANE: It's been moved and seconded--Members Tavares and Anderson. Discussion?
Ms. Tavares?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah, thank you, Mr. Chair. I, I'm in total agreement with
this ...
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. . . tool to be .. .implemented so that we can certainly not stand in the way of
revitalization of, of Wailuku town. There have been many brave souls that have stepped
forward to try to make something out of a business or a property there. And I, my
hat. . .if! had one, went ... {laughter} . .. goes off to them. Those folks have come across
some, some pretty trying times and, and ... difficulties in trying to get their buildings
renovated or new buildings built. I know we've had several. . .issues come before us
with old lot lines and encroachment and all of these kinds of things, that I hope that this is
one way or a way that will help encourage people to put up with some of those
.. . (laughter) . .. obstacles. I hope we will continue to work on trying to encourage and
enhance the process for those folks who are trying to bring some improvement to
Wailuku town. Uh .. .the Wailuku Redevelopment Area Plan which was adopted by this
Council, I forget what year it was-CHAIR KANE: 2000.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: 2000? It has many... action items in it. Some pertaining, or
a lot pertaining to what County government can do in order to facilitate the revitalization
of Wailuku. And it's just kind of curious, I happen to pick up our last issue of.. .City and
County magazine. And in that City and County magazine, it talks about small town
preservation or revitalization as one of their feature articles. And I think that if we can
really work, you know, everybody work together on this to try to, to, to get all the pieces
put in place so that we just, we don't have an MRA that is ... forced to just pick the
low-hanging fruit, as they say--that we can actually do some real, you know, systemic
kinds of improvements to make it possible for our businesses to want to invest in
Wailuku and to build and to thrive there. I think we'll go a whole lot further at, at
revitalizing our, our very precious County seat. And hopefully it stays our County seat
for many, many, many years. And that we work within...within the, the plan of the
development agency and try to look at ways that we can further enhance the
redevelopment of Wailuku. I know that the Department or the, the Office of Economic
Development is right now facing some obstacles on what they can and can't do with the
municipal parking lot. And that's just an aside, and I'm sure we'll hear about it during
budget time. But. . .it's, it's everybody being so buried in their books and, you know, the
black and white-ness of the law, if there is such a thing, and not looking at what is the
objective of the redevelopment law or the objective of renewal, urban renewal. We have
got to find ways to make these things work. And if it means that we have to look at
another ordinance or something to override, just like this, to get some encouragement in
there so that we can actually get some ... some real 24-7 life into that Wailuku area,
which is what we really have to do. Or it is just gonna continue to go downhill. And I
don't wanna paint a really bad picture 'cause I don't think it's gone downhill, I think it's
come uphill from where it was down like five, six, seven years ago. And if we can
continue to help property owners improve their properties, I think this is a very small way
that we can help to encourage them. So I, I'm in 100 percent support of this. And thank
you for the amendments that were proposed, and also thank Ms. Araki-Regan for
rescinding or... withdrawing two of the conditions which seemed to make it onerous
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bunch of paperwork there. And so I think now we have a pretty good bill. And I look
forward to its implementation. Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Tavares. Member Anderson, as the seconder of the motion
before I recognize other members?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Chair. I, I just wanna thank Lynn Araki-Regan
for bringing this forward ... (cleared throat) . .. excuse me. I think it's long overdue that
we have a tool like this to actually support the people who want to be participating in the
redevelopment of Wailuku. So ...
. . . I hope this will do the trick. I think it's a good try. Thank you very much.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Ms. Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I just had ... a couple more questions just to further clarify.
With regard to the first section where it says ... to encourage landowners and
businesses--so from my understanding or my reading of that, it applies to people that also
have residential type properties as well. So they might be falling into a state of disrepair.
So I think one of the things that the testifier had asked ... (laughter) . .. is not just the
businesses, but this is applicable, actually, to the landowners. So that was one point.
And I see Ms. Araki-Regan .. .{laughter} . .. nodding her head that that's correct. And
one-CHAIR KANE: I'm sorry, Ms. Johnson, just so you, so you understand, the, the map that was
provided-COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Right. Uh-huh.
CHAIR KANE: --denotes all the area that is included in this bill, that's affected.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I, I just wanted to make sure that there was nothing specific
to the Redevelopment Area that would be applicable only to just people that were
operating businesses.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: ... (inaudible). ..
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Because many of the small homes now, I think, are also
being converted into ... small business areas. So I think that's really good. And when
will this ...bill take effect, if, you know, if it's passed out of Committee and it passes, it
needs two readings. So ostensibly, when would it be taking effect and when would
people be able to begin to realize any ofthe benefits from this particular legislation?
CHAIR KANE: Ms. Johnson, Section 3 of the bill--this ordinance shall take effect upon its
approval. So when we approve and Mayor signs off.
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COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. But I, I think what I'm looking for is if we do
this ...when would it be able to be implemented? Would be September, December?
Because I heard Mr. Okumura say that we do our property valuations, you know, and
we're already, you know, past December ... (laughter) . .. so ...realistically when could
someone file ... for this particular benefit? And when would they begin to receive
benefits at the earliest?
NOTE:

Silence.

CHAIR KANE: ... Ms. Araki-Regan, are you prepared to respond?
NOTE:

Silence.

MR. YOUNG: ... Mr. Chair?
CHAIR KANE: Yes, Mr. Young?
MR. YOUNG: Ms. Johnson ... based on the ... the, the way the ordinance is currently structured,
assuming that this was passed by the Council and signed by the Mayor immediately, the
effect could be--for landowners or property owners--could be as early as this year. I
believe they have until September...here we go. It's Item C--if they file before
September 30th of this year, the exemption can be claimed or instituted as early as ...next,
next year--assuming that the applicable construction work can be completed.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay, and if they currently--Iet's just say we're passing the
ordinance and let's say their construction is under way. Would that cover individuals
who presently have construction that is not yet completed, but which would add to the
valuation? Those people would be exempted?
CHAIR KANE: Ms. Araki-Regan?
MS. ARAKI-REGAN: Thank you. If you look at Page 2, first paragraph, the building
for the qualifying construction work would have to be-COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Oh.
MS. ARAKI-REGAN: --issued on or after the effective date of the ordinance.
constructing something right now ...my...my property wouldn't apply.

So if I'm

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. All right. Thank you very much.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you.
Mr. Molina?

We are in discussion, Members.
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COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah, thank you, Mr. Chainnan. I'm in full support of this
legislation. I think anything we can do to provide incentives for our property owners to
revitalize places like Wailuku town, I would hope to see that is a first step in bringing
Wailuku town back to life--where it can be mentioned in the same breath as many of our
other historic towns here in the County of Maui. If I could use one example of this type
of legislation that is a real benefit--is San Diego. I remember visiting... although on a
much larger scale from that of Wailuku, but I remember when visiting downtown San
Diego many years ago, it was getting really rundown, not a very attractive place to do
business, and downright scary. But through legislation like this in that area, today,
downtown San Diego is a very thriving community and a very friendly place to do
business. And I would hope to see with legislation like this, that can be brought to
Wailuku town--to bring our city, our capital city, so to speak, for the County of Maui
back to life.
So I'm in total support of this legislation. And I appreciate
Ms. Araki-Regan and the Administration bringing this matter to the Council. Thank you,
Chainnan.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Molina. Any further discussion on this bill?
. . . Before the Chair calls for the vote, Members, the Chair would ask, without
objections, if, that the Staff can have the authority to deal with nonsubstantive changes to
the bill--renumbering, since we've made some adjustments. If you'll note, the bill, the
year is "2005", so we can change that to "2006". Things of that nature. Any objections
to allowing Staff to take care of nonsubstantive changes?
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Thank you very much. With that, Members, all in favor signify by
saying "aye".
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR KANE: Opposed? Let the record show it's unanimous with Mr. Hokama excused from
the vote this afternoon.
VOTE:

AYES:

Councilmembers Anderson, Carroll, Johnson, Mateo, Molina,
Pontanilla, Tavares, and Chair Kane.

NOES:

None.

ABSTAIN:

None.

ABSENT:

None.

EXC.:

Vice-Chair Hokama.
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MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION:

Recommending FIRST READING of revised bill and FILING of
communication.

CHAIR KANE: Members, we have completed the agenda for this afternoon. Thank you very
much for your attendance. Time is 2:40. This Committee meeting is adjourned
.. .(gavel) . ..
ADJOURN:

2:40p.m.

Transcribed by: Camille Sakamoto
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